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To the Members of Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Saveera Institute of Medical
Sciences Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended / Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended / Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.22 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iil.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.
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v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Mk @
pen’r Navneet Rai Kabra B
Partner '

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 22102328AJCVGH8937
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (the Company')

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

€)) a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
p
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2022.

e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(ii) a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores
in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on
the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

d)

b)

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to. report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the medical and healthcare
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods
and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(ix)

9]

(xi)

(xii)

a)

b)

a)

b)

[+

)

b)

b)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer
/ further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit
and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT —
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a) The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business though it is
not required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)
are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year; however it has incurred
a cash loss amounting to Rs. 1.53 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 2.32 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Wt —1

per Navneet Rai Kabra
Partner '

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 22102328AJCVGH8937
Place of Signature: Hyderabad

Date: 17 May 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Saveera
Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

M;xvnuil“{i—f [=—

per Navneet Rai Kabra |
Partner

Membership Number: 102328
UDIN: 22102328AJCVGH8937
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Balance sheet as nt 31 March 2022

All amounis are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless olherwise siated

ASSETS
Non-current nssels
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Financial assets

(i) Other Nnancial assels
Non-current lax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assels
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above
(iv) Other financial assets
Other current assels
Total current assels

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital

Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current linbilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liability (net)
Other non-cuirent liabilities
Total nen-current liabilities

Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other current liabilitics
Total current liabililies

Total equity and liabilities

Significant ace 5 o

Note

21 (a)
21(c)

2.1 (b)
22 ()

23

25
2.6 (a)
26(b)
22(b)
27

28(a)
28(b)
28(c)

29(a)
2.10(a)
211
230

As al
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

51392 53194
551 27
25820 25820
17 14 2538
511 413
61.03 36.67
4292 13.83
903.83 872.86
1633 1237
126,18 12638
111 898
034 024
739 4.47
815 3.90
159.50 156.34
1,063.33 1,029.20
0.16 010
30990 30990
(46.75) (94.06)
26325 21594
633.75 582,66
0.79 243
1.59 126
035 -
636.48 586.35
1579 68.79
20.46 137
84.81 11891
29.15 27.98
722 5.52
6.17 433
163.60 226.91
1,063.33 1.029.20

The accompanying notes referred above form an integral part of the finincial statements.
As per our Report attached of even date

for S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
IGAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

er Nnvneet Rai Knbra
Partner
Membership No: 102328

Place: Hyderabad
Date: [7 May 2022

Q.

DIN: 01681273

Chands

Chandra Kumar Bode
Cumpuny Secreiary
Membership No:55162

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 17 May 2022

for and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
IN: USSTO0AP2018PTCI09004

Lomh

S8.V. Kishore Reddy
Managing Director
DIN: 03492323

-

s
Kusalarno chavali ‘
Chieffinancial officer




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended

s 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue
Revenue from operations 215 850.43 691.90
Other income 216 533 2.82
Total income 855.76 694.72
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 21346 188.60
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instuments 217 (3.97) 0.46
Employee benefits expense 218 186.79 153.18
Depreciation and amortization expense 2.20 50.13 47.06
Finance costs 219 68.16 61.58
Other expenses 221 309.68 29237
Total expense 824.26 743.25
Ptofit/(loss) before tax expense 31.51 (48.53)
Tax expense

- Current tax 230 834 -

- Deferred tax (credit)/expense 230 0.38 0.05
Total tax expense 8.72 0.05
Profit/(loss) for the year (A) 22.79 {48.59)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
- Re-measurement (loss)/ gain on defined benefit plans (0.10) (0.19)
- Income tax effect 0,03 0.05
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (B) (0.07) (0.14)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (A+B) 22.71 {48.72)
Eaming per share (face value of share INR 10 each)

- Basic 2.25 2,278.56 (4,858.90)
- Diluted 2.25 0.74 (4,858.90)
Significant accounting policies 1.3
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the fi jal
As per our Report attached of even date
for S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

Alt amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

I. Cash NMows from opernting activities:

Profit / {loss) before 1ax

Adjustments for operating activities:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Expected credit loss for trade recensable

Sub lease income

Interest income on Fixed deposit

Interest income on IT refund

Finance cosls

Operating cash Nows before working capital changes
Working capitnl adjustiments:

Increase in trade receivables

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets and other assets
(Decreasc)/increase in financial liabilities,provisions and other liabilitics
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes- (received)/paid(net ofl refunds)

Net cash flows gencrated [rom opernting activities (A)

11 Investing activities

Aquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Sub-lease income received

Interest received on Fixed deposit

Net cash flows used in investing activities (B)

111. Financing activities

Receipts from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-lerm borrowings

Receipts of loan from related party

Repayment of loan from related party
Proceeds/(repayment) from short-term borrowings (net)

Redemption of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)
Invesiment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months)

Finance cost
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net incrense/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [refer note 2.7 (a)]

3151 (48.53)
50 13 47.06
648 260
(397) (127)
(0.06) (0.04)
. (0.93)
68 16 61 58
152.25 60.47
(6.28) (31.64)
(3.96) 046
(7.53) 665
(0.44) 16.29
134.04 52,23
(32.69) 214
101.35 5437
(52.01) (48 28)
010 .
397 127
3 0.04
(47.94) (46.97)
650.00 210.00
(600.97) (166.71)
59500 -
(625.00) =
(20.94) 1238
001 006
(0.44) 3
(58.94) (54.96)
(61.28) 0.77
(7.87) 817
898 0.81
111 8.98

Note:
a) The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian accounting Standard (Ind 7)-Statement of cash flows:

b) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: For the year ended For the yenr ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cash on hand 062 075

Balances with banks

- On current accounts 049 823

Total 1.11 8.98

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of Lhe financial statements
As per our Report attached of even date

For 8.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 cach issued,subscribed and fully paid Number of shares Amount
At 1 April 2020 10,000 0.10
Add: Sharcs issued during the year i - -
At 31 March 2021 10,000 0.10
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 10,000 0.10
b) Instruments entirely equity in nature

0.001% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of INR 10 each, Number of shares Amount
issued.subscribed and fully paid-up

At 1 April 2020 30,990,000 309.90
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2021 30,990,000 309.90
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
At 31 March 2022 30,990,000 309.90

¢) Other equity

Particulars Other equity Total of other equity
Reserve and surplus |Capital contribution

Retained earnings

Balance as at 01 April 2020 (64.03) 18.70 (45.33)
Loss for the year (48.59) - (48.59)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (0.14) - (0.14)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (112.76) 18.70 (94.06)
Profit for the year 22.79 - 22.79
Guarantee commission - 24.59 24.59
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (0.07) - (0.07)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 (90.04) 43.29 (46.75)
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report attached of even date
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Company Overview

Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited (‘the Company’) is private company domiciled in
India and is incorporated on 16 August 2018 under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The registered
office of the company is Jocated at D No 1-1348, Srinagar Colony Extension, Opposite to Sakshi Office,
Anantapur, Andhra Pradesh, India - 515004,

The Company is primarily engaged in business of rendering medical and healthcare services.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 17 May 2022.
1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliances:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”)
as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under

section 133 of Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b) Basis of measurement:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value or Amortised cost

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

¢) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Rs. which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions, rounded off to two decimals, except share data and
per share data, unless otherwise stated.

d) Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of Company’s financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by product type, customer type and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of
forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer Note 2.30 — Recognition
of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be
used.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Refer Note 2.23 - Measurement
of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining
maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Classification of financial instruments as equity

The Company has issued 0.001% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
(“COCRPS”) to Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (“KIMS” or “Holding Company™). As per
the terms of the COCRPS, the Company needs to convert at any time after 15" year but before 19" year
from the date of issuance or redeem at the 20" year from the date of issuance, which is in the control of the
Company. Accordingly, the Company has classified and measured the aforesaid instruments as equity,
carried at cost.

e) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based current and non-current
classification.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal
operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

ifi.  itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A llablhty is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

i. it is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

ii.  itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

iii. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

iv.  the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

) Fair value measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis,
the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U8S5100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Periodically, the Management present the valuation results to the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee and
the Company's independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the
valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in Note 2.29 — financial instruments.

1.3  Significant accounting policies

A. Goodwill.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase,
the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCL

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

B. Revenue from contract with customer

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services
and sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. The
performance obligations for this stream of revenue include accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical
professional services, food and beverages, investigation and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration adjusted for
components of variable consideration which constitutes discounts, estimated disallowances and any other
rights and obligations as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected
from customers and deposited back to the respective statutory authorities. Revenue is recognised at the
point in time for the outpatient hospital services when the related services are rendered at the transaction
price. With respect to the inpatients hospital services who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the
balance sheet date, revenue is recognised over the period to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue from sale of pharmacy (other than hospital services), where the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time, is recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method to estimate the variable
consideration in the contract. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration
is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount
is used for those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is used for
those with more than one volume threshold. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining
estimates in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction
price and recognised as revenue.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Contract balances

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients
who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet
date.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost. interest income is recorded
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit and loss.

C. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except
to the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: -

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related
to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at
the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are
recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All,
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

ey




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated)

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

D. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, borrowing costs, if the
recognition criteria are met, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for
its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it located.

The cost of self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company de-recognises the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life
and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of propetty, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are de-recognised from the financial statements upon sale
or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date are recognised as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended
use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

De recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
when the item is derecognized.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the useful life of the assets as estimated by
the management. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Company has estimated the
following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment which are in compliance
with the Companies Act, 2013:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Buildings 60

Medical and surgical equipment 13

Plant and equipment 15

Office equipment 5

Electrical equipment 10

Computers 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the management has
estimated the useful lives of Property, plant and equipment which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule I1 to the Companies Act, 2013 for the following:

e Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In particular, the Company considers
the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its assessment of expected useful lives and
estimated residual values.

E. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life ﬁ'om
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

-
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De recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Category of Assets Useful life (In years)
Software 6
Brand 5
Non-compete fee 5

F. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

G. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives e
the assets. /708 Sa.N
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If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies of Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The Iease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iif) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

H. Inventories

The inventories comprising of medical consumables and pharmacy items are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is determined on weighted average basis. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item by
item basis.

I. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverab
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available.
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

J. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
.expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements. N
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K. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income

(OCl).

The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes to the defined
benefit liability (asset) as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment
or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit

and loss.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relative
service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short term cash
bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of the
past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. ey
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Compensated Absences

As per the leave encashment policy of the Company, the employees have to utilise their eligible leave
during the financial year and lapses at the end of the financial year. Accrual towards compensated absences
at the end of the financial year are based on last salary drawn and outstanding leave absence at the end of
the financial year.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The
Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the Statement of Profits and Losses and are not deferred. The obligations are
presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

L. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient,
the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through prof' /,..___\

or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Financial assets at amortised cost
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets

are not derecognised.
Impairment of financials assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual revenue
receivables’ in these financial statements).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,

then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL, A
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original EIR.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
= Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
= Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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M. Preference shares

0.001% cumulative optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (“COCRPS”) are accounted as
equity component based on the terms of the contract. The proceeds are included in equity since shares met
Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

N. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

O. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividend) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividend) for the year relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average
number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share.

P. Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief

operating decision maker. Managing Director is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

Q. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end
of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise,
events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.
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Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.2 Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
(unsecured, considered good)
(a) Non-current
-To parties other than related parties
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of reporting date* 0.64 0.30
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.06 0.02
Security deposits 4.42 3.81
Total 5.11 4.13

* The above deposits are restrictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee.

(b) Current
-To parties other than related parties

Contract assets (unbilled revenue) (refer note 2.31) 3.91 3.04
Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.08 0.05
Security deposits 0.64 1.38
4.64 4.47
-To related parties
Other receivables 275 -
7.39 4.47
Total
2.3
Other non-current assets
(unsecured, considered good)
21.00 0.59
Capital advances 0.62 -
Prepaid expenses 21.30 13.23
Prepaid guarantee commission
42.92 13.83
2.4
Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
16.33 12.37
12.37

Medical consumables and pharmacy items 16.33
Total
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Saveera Institnte of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

Asal Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.6 Cash and bank balances
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on’ hand 062 075
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 049 823
111 8.98
b) Bank balances other than (n) above
Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months * 034 024
0.34 0.24
1.45 9.22

Total
* The above deposits are resirictive in nature as it pertains to bank guarantee. These guarantees are maturing with in 12 months of the reporling date

¢)  Changes in linbilities arising from financing activities

TParticulnrs 1 Aprit 2021 Cash flows 31 March 2022
Current borrowings 2373 {2054) 279
Mon- current borrowings (including current maturities) 627.72 49.03 64675
Total linbilities from financing activities 651,45 28.09 649.54
Particulars 1 April 2020 Cash flows 31 March 2021
Current borrowings 11.35 12.38 2373
Non- current barrawings (ineluding current maturities) 584.43 4320 62772
Total linbilities from financing activities 595.78 55.67 651.45
2.7 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Asat As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Advance to suppliers 356 1.09
Prepaid expenses 068 042
Staff advances 145 077
Prepaid guarantee commission 246 1.61
8.15 3.90

Total




Saveera Institute of Medi

) Sciences Private Limited

CIN: USSTODAP20ISPTC 109004

Notes 10 (he fi
All amounts are iny

atenents for the year eaded 31 March 2022
n of Inlian Rupees except share data or iless othenise staied

ancial st

2.8 {a) Equity share capital Asal Asan
31 March 2022 31 Mach 2021
Authorised
10,008 (31 Marcl 2021 10.000) oquits shares of INR 10 cach (21 [INAL)
[N 1] i1
Issued, subseribed and paid-np
10.000 (31 March 2021 10.000) cquity shares of INR 10 cach. fully paid-up LA win
0.1 .10
Reconciliation of nuniber of shares outstanding at (he bespnning and at the end of the year:
Particulary As al 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

0]

i)

)

vi)

vii)

Nusher ol Amount Number of S Amount
Al the commienceieni of tlie year 10.000 oli 118, o fi
A Sleires issued durim: ihe ver - - - -
Shires ing at the ¢nd of the year 10,004 win 10,0k ihin

Rights, preferences anil restrictions i hed 1o equity shares @

The Company luis only one class of equity shares lu ing par valuc of Rs 10 per share Exch equity share holder is catitled 1o one sote per oquity shaee eld In the esent of liquidation of the company. the holders
of cquily sharcs will be cntitled 1o receive renwining asscls of the company. after distribution of all preferential amonums The distribution will be in proportion fo he numbcer of equity shares held by the

slurcholders

Particulurs of shureholilers holfing more (han 8% cquity shares of m 10 cachufally il e

Name of sharcholder As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of % of Holding Number of sharey % of Holding
sharey
Krishm Imstitule of Medical Sciences Litd 8.000 80.00% 3000 80.00%
S.V. Kishore Reddy 765 7.65% 765 765%
Yelakala Surendra Reddy 668 6.68% 668 6 68%

Shivees of the Canrpany bebd by lolillng company

Name of sharcholder Ay al 31 March 2022 Ay at 31 March 2021
Number of shares Amoun( Number of shares Amoun(
Krishra Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 8,000 0.08 3.000 0.08

The Company las not issucd bonus slares during the period of five years inumediately preceding e reporting period
The Company Inis not bought back awmy shares during (he period of five years immediately preceding (lie reporting period

Detils of shares held by Promotery *
As at 31 March 2022

Nolofshanedat Change during  No of shares ut el

% change during the

icul i o
S. No. Particulars Promoter name Ix-ng;xinf the 1he year of the year % of total shares vear
! Equily stiarcs of Rs_ 10 cach fully paid R tstiuic oMl 8000 s 8.000 80.00% 0.00%)
Scicnces Limited
2 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Veera Kishore Reddy sane 765 - 765 765% 0.00%
3 Equity slares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Yelakaly Surcndm Reddy 668 . 668 6.68% 0.00%
Tatal 9,433 - 9433 na4 -
As i 31 March 2021
No of shares at . o B
S. No. Particulars Promeoter name beginning of the Chane dusingy |Nojofisharey atend % of tolal shares % d"'"? during the
. (he year of the year year
3 _— Krishna Instifute of Medical
1 Equily slores of Rs, 10 cach fully paid Sciences Lintled 8,000 - 8,000 80 00% 0 00%|
2 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid Veer Kishore Reddy sane 765 - 765 165% 0,00%|
3 Equily shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid Yelakala Surendra Reddy 668 - 668 668% 0.00%
Turtal 9433 - 9433 094 -

* Promolers are as per (he anmial return flod by the Compuary,




Saveera Instifute of Medical Sciences Private Limited
CIN: UBSTIDAPZBISPTC 109004
Notes to the financial seatements for the year ended 31 March 2022

2.8 (b) Instruments calirely equity in nature

As ut Asal
3 Mirch 2032 31 March 2021
Authorised
090000 (31 March 2021 30.9%M.000) preference shares of INR 10 each 309 90 309 90
JiH 3o,
Issucd, subscribed and paid-up
J0.990.000 (31 March 2021 30.990.000). 0 001 %% cunilatis ¢ optionally com ertible redeenuible preference shares of INR 10 cach. fully paid-up 309 90 30990
309, R AL
] ion of numsher’ of shires outxtanding at the besinning and at the end of the years
Particulary As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number of Amount Number of shares At
Al the commiencenient of Ui ycar IR 309,90 LI a0
Slares issued during the var = 2 .
Shiares aaatetamling o the end af the vear RN JIH, i 301, K Ji iy
i} Rights, preferences anil restrictions attached (o preference shares:

COCRPS were issued at par on 19 March 2019 10 ils parent company, Krishia Institute of Medical Sciences Limited, COCRPS carry a cumulative dividend raie of 0 00144 pa. COCRPS Tave a preferential
right of dividend over equity sharclolders. Follow ing are (he ienns and conditions:

i. The COCRPS can be com eried into 30990 (W) equily shares of Rs, 10/- cach at par (i.c cach COCRPS shall be comerted inlo 1 (ouc) Equity Share of the Company al any Lime afier (he 7th ycar bul before
10th ycar from the date of issuance and aliolment of the COCRPS at the soke option of (he Company supporied by (hie resolulion passed by all the Dircclors wiminintously in a Board Mecting and approval by oll
the sharcholders (Equily ) in i General Mocting,

ii. The COCRPS will be redecnuble (in multipie tranches or single (ranchic) at the option of the Company by way of (i) com ersion of CORCPS aficr 7th year bul before 10(hyear from the date of isswance :nd
allotment of the COCRPS based on the valuation certificate obtained from (he Clartered Accountant or Mercliant Banker as (e case n@y be or (ii) payment after 2nd year but before the end of 10t year from
the date of issuance, The COCRPS will anly be redeenied at par i ¢. at which such COCRPS are issucd (ic INR 10 per COCRPS aggregating (o INR 309.904.000). and no other preminm will be payable al the
lime of redemption However. accumulatod dividend will be paid before redemplion.

fiif) Particulars of sharchalders holiting more thin 5% shares
Nuine of sharcholder As ut 31 March 2022 As al 31 March 2021
Number of % of Holding Number of sharey % of Holding
shares
Krishm Institute of Medical Scienees Limited 30,990.000 100.00% 30,990.000 100.00%
Iv) Sthures 4f the Company hehd by Inbiling Lomjany
Name of shurcholder As al 31 March 2022 Ay at 31 March 2021
Number of sharces Amount Number of sharey Amount
Frishrey Tstitide of Medicil Scicnoes Lishined 30990004 R 0 ol 3iv)
Aval Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
28(c) Other equity
Capital contribution
Balance as per last fimincial statements 1870 18.70
Movemem during the year 2459 =
Closing balance 4).29 18.70
Retained camings
Balance a5 per last finncial siaremens (112.76) (64.03)
Add: Profii/(loss) for (he vear 271 (48.59)
Add: Other compreliensiv e (loss)income for Lhe year (0.07) (0.14)
Closing balance (90.04) (112.76)
Total other equily ({6.75) (94.06)

MNature gl purpose of reserves:

() Retalned carnings

Retained earmnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earncd/incurred till dale, less any (ransfers lo general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to sharcholders. Retained camings includes re-
measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefil placs, net of laxcs that will nol be reclassified to Staterment of Profit and Loss. Retained carnings is a frce reserve available (o 1he Company and eligible for
distribution to sharcholders, in casc where it is laving positive balnce representing net carmings till date.

(i) Capital contribution

Fimncial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at (he time of issue of guarantee, The liability is measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of (e amount determined in accordance
wilh Ind AS 37 and the amound initially ised less ) isation. where appropri

Where guaraniec in relation lo loans or other payables of subsidiary is prov ided for no compensalion by (e sharchiolder. fair values of such guaranices arc accounied as capital contribution in the books of the

Company.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

2.9 Borrowings (at amortised cost)

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

(a) Non-current borrowings

Secured
Term loans from bank

- HDFC Bank Limited (refer note (a) below) 633,75 552.66
Total loans from bank (A) 633.75 552.66
Unsecured
Loan from related party (refer note (b) below) - 30.00
Total unsecured loans (B) - 30.00
Total (A+B) 633.75 582.66

(b) Current borrowings

Secured
Working capital loans from banks (refer note (c ) below ) 2.79 23.73
Current maturity of long term borrowings

- HDFC Bank Limited (refer note (a) below) 13.00 45.06
Total current borrowings 15.79 > 68.79
Notes:

a) Term loan taken from HDFC Bank Limited has repayment term of 60-135 months and the last instalment in the said facilities is due in
February 2030. The loan carries an interest rate of 8.25%-9.75% p.a (31 March 2021 : 8.25%-9.75% p.a)The loan was preclosed during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

The loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on moveable and immoveable assets, current assets of the Company and equitable mortgage
on the property owned by the Company situated at Sy no.155, D.No.1-1348,NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony extension, Near
Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further, the loan is secured by way of Corporate guarantee given by Krishna Institute of Medical
Sciences Limited (KIMS) the holding Company and personal guarantee given by the directors:- Mr. S,V Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala
Surendra Reddy. The loans are repaid during the year.

New term loan taken during the year from HDFC Bank Limited has repayment term of 120 months and the last installment in the said facilities is
due in December 2031.The loan carries an interest rate of 6% (31 March, 2021 : Nil) floating rate linked to 3 months T-Bill +1%( spread) per
annum.The loans are secured by first and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets and current assets of the Company (both Present and future)
and equitable mortagage on the land and building owned by the company situated at Sy no, 155, D.No.1-1348,NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri
Nagar Colony extension, Near Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Anantapur-515004. Further the loan is secured by way of corpoarate guarantee given by
Krishna Instittute of Medical Sciences Private Limited(KIMS), the Holding Company and personal guarantee given by the directors - Mr. S,V
Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala Surendra Reddy.

b) Unsecured loan from related parties as at 31 March, 2021 represented loans obtained from Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited
(KIMS) and carrying interest rate of 8.5% -12% p.a (31 March 2021 : 12% p.a).The loan was repaid during the year ended 31 March 2022.

c) Secured working capital loan represents overdraft facility from HDFC Bank Limited. The facility carries interest rate of 9.95% per annum,
linked to 1 year MCLR. The loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on moveable and immoveable assets, current assets of the Company and
equitable mortgage on the property owned by the Company situated at Sy no.155, D No.1-1348 NH 44, Rudrampet Panchayat, Sri Nagar Colony
extension, Near Ayyappa Swamy Temple, Arantapur-515004, Further, the loan is secured by way of Corporate guarantee given by Krishna
Institute of Medical Sciences Limited (KIMS) and persenal guarantee given by the directors:- Mr, S.V Kishore Reddy and Mr. Yelakala Surendra
Reddy.




Saveera Institute of Medieal Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Noles (o the finnncinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million ol Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise stated

Asat As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2,10 Other financial liabilities (a amortised cost)
{a)  Nom-current
Capital creditors 079 243
Total 0.79 2.43
(b)  Current
Capital creditors 164 411
Employce related liabilities* 2428 1341
323 1046

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Total 29.15 27.98

The Company’s exposure (o interesl rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks 1s included in note 2 29
*Includes payables to related parties. For details refer note 2.24

2.11 Long-term provisions

Provision for employce benefits

Graluily (refer note 2 23) 159 1.26
Total 1.59 1.26
2.12  Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Trade payables
- total oultstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 2 27) 2046 137
- total oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 8481 11891
Total 105.27 120.29
The above includes payable to related parties For details refer note 2.24
Trade paybles are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-90 day terms
Trade Payable Aging Schiedule s on 31 March 2022
Particulars Current but No Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(1) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and samll enterprises 827 12.19 = - - 2046
(i1} Total outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprises and sam|! enterprises 3526 44.80 057 - £ 80.63
(1) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and
saml] enterprises - - - - = =
(iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and saml| enterprises - - - - - -
Total 101.09
Accrued expenses 4.18
Balance at the end of the year 105.27
Trade Payable Aging Schedule as on 31 March 2021
Particulars Current but No Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment

due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and samll enterprises - 137 - - - 1.37
(it} Total cutstanding dues of creditors ather
than micro enterprises and samll enterprises 48 03 47.21 117 0.08 - 96.50
(i) Disputed dues of micro enterprises and
samll enterprises = . 5 . i =
(iv) Disputed dues of ereditors other than micro
enterprises and samil enterprises . : = : ' “
Total 97.87
Accrued expenses 22.42
Balance at the end of the year 120.29

2.13 Short term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 722 5.52
Total 7.22 5.52
2.14 Other current liabilities

Statutory dues 437 3.59
Contract liabilities* (refer note 2,31) 181 075
Total 6.17 4.33

* Represents advances received from patients.




Saveera Institute of Medical Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share data or unless otherwise staled

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.15 Income from operations
Income from contracts with customers
Income from medical and healthcare services (Refer note 2.31)
Income from hospital services 408.86 337 81
Income from sale of pharmacy 441.57 354 09
Total 850.43 691.90
2.16 Other income
Interest income on:
- fixed deposits 0.06 0.04
- income tax refunds - 093
Rental income 397 1.27
Miscellaneous Income 1.31 0.58
Total 5.33 2.82
2.17 (Increase)/decrease in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical
Opening stock 12.37 12.83
Less: Closing stock (16,33) (12.37)
Total (3.97) 0.46
2.18 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 174.99 141.31
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 2.23) 9.51 935
Staff welfare expenses 2.29 2.52
Total 186.79 153.18
2.19 Finance costs
Interest from banks
- term loans . 26.01 49.20
- other loans 225 2.51
Loan from related parties (refer note 2.24) 23.46 7.24
Guarantee commission (refer note 2.24) 15.67 1.61
Others 0.77 1.01
Total 68.16 61.58
2.20 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note no 2.1(a)) 40.55 37.62
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note no 2.1(b)) 9.59 9.44

Total 50.13 47.06




Saveera Institute of Medicul Sciences Private Limited

CIN: U85100AP2018PTC109004

Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts are in million of Indian Rupees except share dala or unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
2.21 Other expenses
Consultancy charges 18173 178 60
House keeping expenses 15.74 1355
Power and fuel 2265 19 95
Catering and patient welfare expenses 18 08 1826
Rent {refer note 2 33) 381 322
Repairs and maintenance
- Medical equipment 16.29 1288
- Hospital building and others 12.00 1519
Printing and stationery 5.61 4.17
Audit fee (refer note below) 0.70 060
Legal and professional charges 243 209
Rates and taxes 0.66 058
Traveling and conveyance 6.48 313
Adverlisement expense 8.07 938
Communication expenses 1.48 117
Expected credit loss for trade receivable 6.48 260
Insurance 0.61 0.65
Subscriptions and membership fees 1.08 1.92
Bank charges 1.64 112
Miscellaneous expenses 4.15 332
Total 309.68 292.37
Payment to auditor
Particilnrs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Statutory audit fee 0,760 0.60
222 Contingent liabilities and commitments
(a) Commitments
Particulars Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i) Estimatéd amount of T ining to be d on capital account and not provided for (net of 121.60 1.09

|advanees)

(b) On 28 February 2019, the Supreme Court of India issued a judgement which provided further guidance for companies in determining which components of their
employee's compensation are subject to statutory withholding obligations, and matching employer contribution obligations, for Provident Fund contributions under
Indian law. There are interpretative issues relating to the restrospective applicability of the jud H , from the date of order, the Company has complied
with the aforesaid Supreme court's jud, The Company will eval the same and update its position for earlier years, if any on receiving further clarity on the
subject
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2.23 Employee benefits

(i)  Defined benefi( plan
The Company operate posi-employmeni defined benefil plan that provides for gratuiin The Company accrues uraluity as per the proyisions of the payment of Graluily Act.
1972 as applicable as al the balance sheet dale. The gratity plan entitles an employee. who has rendered at least ive vears of conlinuous services. (o receive one-hall’ month's
salary for each year of compleled services al the time of relirement/exit. The graluily fund is adminisiered by trust formed for this purpose and is managed by Lile Insurance
Corporalion of India The Compam's obligation in respect of graluity plan. which is a defined beneiit plan is prorided for based on actuarial yaluation carried oul by an
independent actuany using the projected unit credit method

A Based on the actuarinl valuation ebtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the nmonnts recognised in the

Company's fi inl as at the balance sheet date:

Particulars Lol pEa
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Defined benelit obligations liability 409 242

Plan assels 250 113

Net defined benefit liability 1.59 1.26

Non-currenl 1.59 1.26

Current

B Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assels)liability
The follow ing lable shows a reconciliation from the opening balances lo the closing balances for net defined benefil obligation, plan asseis and its componenis

i) Reconcilintion of present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Asat asat
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Defined benefit obligation as at 1 April 242 1.15
Current service cost 140 097
Interest cost 0.14 0.07
Actuarinl losses/(gains) gnised in olher prehensiye income
- Changes in demographic assumplions a =
= Changes in financial assumptions (010) 0ol
- experience changes 0.23 0.22
Defined benefit obligation as at balance sheet date 4.09 2.42
ii) Reconciliation to fair value of plin assets
Particulars e At
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
P'lan ossels at beginning of the year 115 -
Coniributions paid inlo the plani 1.24 L1
Return on plan assets 008 -
Ttetum on plan assels recognised in olher comprehensive income ial gain/loss) 003 004
Plan assets at end of the year 250 (WE
Net defined benefit linhill'y z 1.59 1.26
C i) Exp ised in of profit and loss
Parficulirs For (he year ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Currenl service cost 1.40 097
Inlerest cost 0.06 0.07
Net gratuity cost, included in ' benefi ¥ 1.46 1.03
ii) Re-mensurements recognised in other comprehensive income (OCH)
Particulnry For the year ended For the yenr ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarial (gain) / loss on nel defined benefit obligation 0.13
[Actual retum on plan assels less interest on plan assets (03
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2.23 Employce benefits (Continued)

D Plan assets
Plan assels comprises of the following:

Asat Asal
Particuline
31 Mch 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Fnd manieed by Insurer 2.3 |1
E Defined benefil obligation
i) Actuarial assumplions
The follow ing are the principal acluarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighied ayerages):
Pringipal actuarial assumptions Asat Asat
31 Murel 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rale 625% e
Salor' escalalion rite R (0% ¥ AN
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligalion
Particulms As at Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1st following year 0.03 0.0]
Year 2 1o 5 years 318 1.60
Year 6 lo 9 years 141 098
More than 10 vears 1.24 0.99

The avernge duration of the defined benefit plan obligalion at the end of the reporting period is 5.14 years (31 March 2021: 6 17 vears)

ii} Sensitivity nnalysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reponiing date 1o one of the relevant actuarial assumplions would have aflected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown

below:
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021

I Deerease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movemen!) (0.20) 022 ©14) 016
Future salasy increase (1% moyement) 022 {0,200} 015 {0, 14}

Although the analysis does nol lake account of the full distribution of cash flows expecied under the plan. it does nol provide an approximation of Lhe sensitivily of the
assumplion shown.

(i)  Defined confribution plnn
For il il
|Bsriteutars Fnr‘lluc year ended For the yeoar ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amouni recognised in Lhe stalement of profit and loss lowards

i) Provident fund 443 520
1) Emnploted stage 3.62 312
(iii) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating lo employee benefils during employ and post-empl benefits received Presidential assent in Seplember 2020

The Code has been published in the Gazelte of India. However, the date on which the Code will come inlo effect has not been notified and (he final rules/inierpretation have
nol yel been issued. The Company is assessing the impact of the Code and will record any reloled impact in the period of the Code becomes effective
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2.24 Reluied party disclpsures

(i) Parties where comirol eaisia or n hire o ant influence evists mmd with wlim teapsactions hpve taken place duoring the current yenr or previnis vear'
ul velatinmshi; Nare of cehuted partive
ement personnel (KA 5.V kishore Reddy. Munoging Direcior **
Yelakala Surendra Reddv. Whole Time Direclor **
P Sudhakar Chiel Financial ofTicer (Resigned on 31 Aug 2020)
Kusalarao Chasali Chief Financial officer (Appoinied w e . 22 Feb 2021 )
Chandia houmiar B, Company Seeectary
Mirecinrs Cr BB Abhinay
Giri Thalluru
Ramakrishna Reddy Garisa
Preethi Reddy Ycalakaln (Appointed w.e.l. 08 Feb 2022)
G Rajeawara Rio
Enterpebacs umiler conteal ae jobot conrral of Saveera Educational Socicly
KA and other relntive Savcera Hospital Private Limited
Surjram Holcls
Yelakak Iodusirics Private Linied
Fellin subsdiary KIMS Hospitnl Emerpriscs Private Lumied
hIMS Huspital Kumoo| Privite Linised
Huoliding Company hrishia leaiuie of Medical Scionces Limised
Parti For the period ended For the year eowdeil)
articulurs
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
3 Munugerinl remuncration paid (o key munagerial personnel*
SV Kishore Reddy 336 336
Yclakala Surcndra Reddy 226 264
Chandra Kumar B 0.24 024
Kusalarao Chavali 0.54 004
P Sudhakar - 030
li.  Advances given
Saveera Educalional Society 2.75 0.72
ik Refumd of adyimee
Saveera Educational Socicty - 729
iv.  Medical camp and markeling expenses
Yelakaln Industries Privale Limited 0.06
V. Amaount collected on behalf of the Compuny and transferred fo the
Company (including tax deducted al source)
Savcera Hospilal Privale Limiled 4131 4143
¥l Medical Consumbles Purchases
KIMS Hospital Enterprises Private Limited - 037
KIMS Hospilal Kurnool Private Limited 0.12 019
Krishna Institute of Medical Scicnces Limiled 753 798
i, Equipment Purchase
KIMS Hospilal Enlerpriscs Privaic Limiled . 464
¥iil. Medical Consumbles Sales
KIMS Hospital Kurmnool Private Limited 008 0,02
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 759 076
iz,  Dircctors Sitting fee
Ramakrishna Reddy Garisa 010 007
G. Rajeswara Rao 0.l0 007
%  Loan Token
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 595.00 105.00
il.  Loan repaid
Krishna Institule of Medical Sciences Limited 625.00 135.00
xii. Test & Investigations Fees
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 133 075
i, Commission expense on corporate guarantees
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limiled 1567 1.61
sive Interest on unsecurcd loan
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 2346 7.24
1v. Corporate guarantee received
Krishna Institute of Medical Scicnces Limited 650.00 -
xvi. Corporate guaranice closed
Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited 530,00 -
avii. Capital Contribution on account of financial guaranfee
Krishna Institule of Medical Sciences Limiled 24.59 -
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2,24 Related party disclosures (Continued)

()  The balances veceived from and payable to related parties

Punticufurs AsE e
2 2 30 Mitrch 3122 31 March 2020

I Managerin) remuneration payable

S.V. Kishore Reddy 022 0.21

Yclakala Surendra Reddy - 0.06

B Chandra Kumar n2 0.02

Kusnlarao Chavali (X ] 004

Precthi Redds Yealakala 1wis -
i Reeceiyabie/(payable) balance (Net)

Krishna Instituic of Medical Sciences Limiled 609 9.40
lii.  Unsccurcd Loan

Krishna Institute of Medical Scicnces Limited = 30
. Interest accrucd

Krhmn lnstijuie of Medical Sciences Limited - 6.67
v.  Corporatc guaraniee received

Krishna Institute of Medical Sciences Limited T 1 580.00
vi.  Prepaid gusrantee commission

Bonshina Iestitte of Medical Scimees Limited 2376 14,54

(d)  For ceriain loan availed by the Company. Direclors of the Company have given personal guaraniee Refer note 2.9 for details on the same

*The managerial personnel are covered by the Company's grawity policy and are cligible for kave encashment along with other employees of (he Company. The
proportionate amount of gratuily, compensaled absence per! ng lo the managerinl personnel has not been included in the aforementioned disclosures ac these are
determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole,

** 8 V. Kishore Reddy and Yelakala Surendra Reddy hove provided personal guaraniee against the term loan and cash credit facilily obtained by the Company from HDFC
Bank Limiled.

Terms and conditions:
All transactions with these related parties are priced on on arm's length basis and resulling i i and payables including financial assets and financinl
liabilitics balances are seutled in cash within a range of 30-120 days of the ransaction date. None of e balances arc sccured
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2.25 Earnings per share(EPS)

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Earnings
Net Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholdeis 22.79 (48.59)
Less: Dividend payable to preference shareholders** (0.00) (0.00)
Loss considered for EPS calculation 2279 (48.59)
Shares
Number shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year - Basic 10,000 10,000
Weighted average number of equity shares arising out of issue of potential equity shares 30,990,000 30,990,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year -diluted 31,000,000 31,000,000
Eamnings/ (loss) per share of par value INR 10 each-Basic (INR) 2,278.56 (4,858.90)
Earnings/ (loss) per share of par value INR 10 each-Diluted (INR)* 0,74 (4.838.90)

There are no potentially dilutive equity shares.

*Potential equity shares of the Company are anti-dilutive in nature, hence, diluted eamings per share is considered as equal to basic eamnings per share in the

previous year.
**the amount is below rounding off norms adopted by the company.
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2.26 Segmenl information
The Managing Director of the Company takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the report/ information provided by
functional heads and are thus considered o be Chief Operating Decision Maker

Based on the Company's busi model, medical and healil services have been considered as a single business segment for the purpose of making decision on
allocation of resources and assessing ils performance Accordingly, there dre no separate reporiable segments in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108
‘Operating segment’ and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the Financial Stalemenis Presently, the
Company’s operalions are predominantly confined in India There are no individual cusiomer contributing more than 10% of Company's tolal revenue. All non-current
assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assels, posi-employment benefit assets of the Company are localed in India

2.27 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which reconimends that the Micro and Small Enterprises
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs M durn Number as all d after filing of the Memorandum Accordingly, the
disclosure in respect of the amount payable o such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and
available with the Company Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Ac1,2006 (The MSMED Act') is nol expected to be material The Company has not received any claim for interest from any

supplier

a As at Asnt
plvtitaliss 31 March 2022) 31 March 2021
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplies as at end of 1he year
- Principal 2046 137
5 Interest - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop - -
Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along wilh the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
avcouniimg year;
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - =

PP | day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dies, - -
a5 above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Sextion
23 of the MSMED Act
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2.28 Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintdin investor and creditor confidence and fo sustain future development of

the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the ‘Gearing' ratio

For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components of equity

excluding capital contribution.
The Company's Gearing ratio as of 31 March 2022 and 31 Maich 2021 was as follows:

Particulars As at As ;‘
31 Muarch 2022 31 March 2021
Total borrowings 649.54 651.45
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1.11 8.98
Adjusted net debt 648.43 642.47
Tatal equity 219.96 197.24
Gearing ratio 295% 326%

In order to achieve this averall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst ather things. aums to ensure that it meets financial
cavenants attached to thie interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial

covenants would permit the bank 1o immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been nio breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-

bearing loans and borrowing during the current year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
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2.29 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

As at 31 March 2022 Carrving Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 126.18 126.18

Cash and cash equivalents 1.1 L1t

Bank balances other than above 0.34 034

Other financial assels 12.50 12.50
Total 140.13 140,13

Level 3

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings 633.75 633.75

Short-tenn borrowings 15.79 15.79

Tiade payables 10527 105,27

Other financial liabilities 29.94 2994
Total 784.75 784.75
As at 31 March 2021 Carrying Value Fair Value Fair value level
Financial assets at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Trade receivables 126.38 126.38

Cash and cash equivalents 8.98 8.98

Bank balances other than above 0.24 0.24

Other financial assets 8.60 8.60 \
Total 144,20 144,20

Level 3

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Refer note below)

Long-term borrowings 582.66 582.66

Short-term borrowings 68.79 68.79

Trade payables 120.29 120.29

Other financial liabilities 30.41 3041
Total 802.15 802.15
Note for financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other fi ials assets, other fi ial liabilities , short term borrowings and cash and cash equivalents

and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for loans were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair value hierarchy
due to the use of unobservable inputs including own credit risk.
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2.29 Finoncial instruments : Fair value and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management
The Company’s activilics cxposc it 10 a variely of linancial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk

(i) Risk management framework
The Company's Board of Dircclors have overall responsibility for the establisk and osersight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board of Dircelors has established the risk
which is iblc for des cloping and monitoring the Compam 's risk management policies The commiliee reports regulacly to the Board of Dircclors on ils aclivitics

The Company s risk management policics are established to identify and analysc the risks faced by the Company. lo set appropnate risk limits and conlrols to monitor risks and adherence 1o limits
Risk management policics and systems are reviewed regularly o reflect changes in market conditions and Company’s aclivitics The Company. through its training and management standards and
aims lo maintain a disciplined and ive control environmenl in which all the employ ces und d (heir roles and obli

p

The Company's Board of Dircclors oyversees how i li with the Company’s risk management policics and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company  The Board of Dircclors is assisied in its oversight role by the intemal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures. (he results of which are reported 1o the Board of Dircelors

(ii} Credit risk

Credil risk is Lhe risk that the counterparty will nol mect its obligation under a finencial instrument or cusiomer contract, leading to financial loss The credit risk arises principally Irom its opcrating
activitics (primarily trade reccivables) and from its investing aclis itics, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments The carrying amounts of financial asscls
represent the masiminm eredit sk exposure

Credil risk is controlled by analysing credit limils to whom eredit has been granied aller obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The collection from the trade reccivables arc monitored on a
conlinuous basis by the receivables (cam

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its estimale of expecied losses in respect of Imde and other receivables based on the past and the recent collection trend, The
maximum exposure o credit risk as al reporting dale is primarily from trade reeeivables omounting to INR 126.18 as on 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 126 38) The movement in allowance for
credil loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

Asat Asat
Allowonice for credit losses 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening balance 273 713
Credit loss added 648 2.60
Closing balance 1621 973

The Group uses a provision malrix (o determine the expected credit loss on the portfolio of its trade reccivables and conlrnct assets. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expecied life of the trade receivables and contract assets and is adjusted for forward looking cslimnles. The expeeled credit loss allowance is bascd on the ageing of the days the
reccivables arc due in the provision matrix. Set out below is the information aboul the credit risk exposure of the Group’s trade receivables and contract assel using provision mairix:

Not past due 0-180 days due past due More than 180 days past Gross trade

date due date receivables and

contrivet nssety
For the year ended 31 March 2022 7194 58.16 1621 146,31
For the vear ended 31 March 2021 8679 4262 973 139.15

Customer Concentration
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Group's total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 Therefore the customer concentralion risk is limiled due Lo the

large and unrelied castomer base

Credil risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Group gencrally Lransacts with banks and financial institutions with high credil ratings assigned by intcrmational and domestic credit rating
agencies,
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2.29 Financial instruments : Fair value and risk management {continued)

(iii} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difliculty in meeting the obligations associated with ils financial liabilitics thal are scttled by deln ering cash or another financial asset The
Company has an hed liquidity risk framework for managing its short term. medium term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements The Company’s exposure
lo liquidity risk ariscs primarily from mismaiches of the mawrilies of financial asscis and liabilitics. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maniaining adequate funds in cash and cash
equivalens The Company also has adequate eredit facilities agreed with banks Lo ensurce that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a limely and cost-cfTective

o1

manncr
The table below provides details regarding the undi: d I maturities of signifi financial liabilitics as of 31 March 2022:

Particulars Carrying Value Less than 1 yenr 1-5years Nore than 5 years Total
Non current borrowings 63375 - 196 63 43712 63375

Short term borrowings 1579 1579 . - 1379

Trade payables 10527 10527 - - 10527

iher firancaal labilines 2004 0 1174 . b4

Total TR, TE 150,21 19742 43712 78475

The table below provides details regarding the undi d | maturitics of signifi financial liabilitics as of 31 March 2021:

Particulars Carrying Vilue Lesd than 1 yeir 1-5 veiirs More than 5 yoars Total
Non current borrowings 582 66 33543 24723 58266

Short lerm borrowings 68.79 6879 - - 6879

Trade payables 12029 12029 - - 12029
Other financial liabilities 3041 2798 243 - 3041

Total 802.15 217.06 337.86 247.23 802.15

The Company hes secured loans from bank that contain loan covenants. A future breach of covenant may require the Company (o repay the loan carlier than indicaled in the above table

{iv) Market risk
(a) Interest rate risk exposure !

1y b ing 10 imtercst rate chinees ab the cind of the reporime pered are as fllovs.

The exposire of the Com
Particulars Asnt As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate borrowings including current maturities and short term borrowings 649 54 62145
649.54 621.45

Total borrowings

(b} Cosh Mow sensitivity analysis
Equity, net of tax
Particulars For the year ended For Lhe year ended 31
31 March 2022 March 2021

Sensitivity
1% increase in MCLR
1% decrease in MCLR

(630) {621)

The interest rale sensilivity is based on the closing balance of sccured Lerm loans and working capilal loans from banks

{v) Currency risk
The Company is nol exposed Lo curréney risk




Sascera Institute of Medical Sciences Prisate Limited
CIN: UBS100AP2018PTCI091004

Notes 10 the financlul statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Allzmounts are in million of Indian Rupees exeepl slire data o inless otherwise Satad

2.30 Income-tax
u. Amoun! recognised in stutement of profit und loss

Fir the vear emhil

Fur the vear smilvil

A1 Marih JA23 21 Miirvh 021
Lt N 834
Delerrad tax anrbutable to lemperan differances 03N i
‘Tax expenses for the sear 872 s
h. Amount recopnised in other comprehensis ¢ income
For the year ended 31 Muarch 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Belore tux Tux (espensey Net of fax Before fux Tan ey Nt ol 1y
henefit Denefit
|Re-mexsunement on defimed benelit plans (LA [\x) {07) [CA) 005 © 14y
«. Reconcilintion of effective tux rate
Fur the yearended  For the year emibed
31 March 2022 J1 March 2021
Profit hefore tax 3150 (45 35)
Enacted lox rutes 27.82% 27.82%
l'rw expanse at enacted rales 476 (REEL}}
Tax effect of mmounts which ure not deductible/ (taxable) in culculating tuxuble income
M hers ©o) 1356
8.72 0.08
. Recognition of deferred tax assels and liabllities
1) Deferred tan asnets and Habifities wre attribubahle to the Talliwing
Parthuars Asat Asut
31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021
Deferred tux amet®
[ Prowisson for doubtlul recvivables 4.08 155
Proviisin for employoe benefils 4.40 L7
Husnscw loss 5 R
(Tutal defereed tax assel B.48 #41
Deferred {ax Hsbility
I'raperty, plant and equipment liability) 883 841
Tutal deferresl tux linbility 8.83 841
Dheferred tas (lability) fasset (net) (0.35) -
an v in v di
Provision for Provision for  Business loss Property, plant and Total
douhiful gratuily equipment (Jinbility)
reccivables
Halanve as at 1 April 2021 (I LM 107 Ba =
Reoognisal in protit or loss during 2020-21 035 052 185 . 292
R pined in 4] dispang 202021 - 005 = (297) (297)
Ealunce as al 31 March 2021 15 176 41z Al -
Hecognined I peofit of loss during 2021-22 [I5) 100 [N = hiH
| Revogmsed i CHC] durmg 2021-22 . 003 = 1h42) JEET)
Balunce ax 21 31 March 2022 LA 440 - LES)] (0.35)
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2.31 Revenue from contracts with customers:

Disaggregated revenue information .
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Particulars For the period ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income [rom hospital services 408.86 337.81
Income from pharmacy 44157 354.09
Total revenue from contracts with customers 850.43 691.90

India 85043 691.90
Outside India = .

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over time 408.86 337.81
Goods transferred at a point of time 441.57 354.09
Total revenue from contracts with customers 850.43 691.90

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

Contract price 925.49 776.07
Less: Discounts and disallowances (75.06) (84.17)
Total revenue from contracts with customers 850.43 691.90

Contract balances

For the period ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade receivables 126.18 126.38
Contract assets 391 3.04
Contract liabilities 1.81 0.75

Contract liabilities: During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has recognised revenue of Rs. 0.75 from advance received from
patients outstanding as on 31 March 2021. During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has recognised revenue of Rs.1.09 from
advance received from patients outstanding as on 31 March 2020.

Contract asset: During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the company has transferred Rs. 3.04 of contract assets as at 31 March 2021 to
trade receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the company has transferred Rs.1.09
of contract assets as at 31 March 2020 to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
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2.32 Ratio Analysis and its

B N Asat Asat

Partienlars Numerator Denominator 31 Marh 2022 33 Mareh 2021 % change *

Current Ratio Current Assels Current Liabities 097 069 415014
Debl-Equily ralio Tolal Debis(]) Shareholder’s Equity 247 302 =18 21"
Debl service coverage ratio Eamings for debis senice(2) Debl service(3) 022 (28 =21 4ty
Inventon Tumover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Imentory 14 60 1501 23N
Trade Receivable lumos er Ralio Net Credil Sales(+) Average Trade Receivables 673 619 X AN
Trade Pavable tumoser Ratio Nel credil Purchases(5) Average Trade Pavables 464 423 9 Tivte
Net Capitai tumover ralio Nel Sales(6) Working capital(7) (207 66) V.80 2018 |5%
Reiurn on Equity Ratio Nel profits alter laxes Average Shareholder's equity 9351% -20.22% =147,
Nel Profil ratio Net profit Nel Sales(6) 267% -704% -137 3%,
Retum on Capital employed Eamings belore interest and laxes Capilal Employed(8) 1112% 155% 617 757,
Relumn on [nvestment Interest {Finance Income) Time Weighted Average Investment 670% 670% [1A1 5%

4 Debt includes Lease Liabilities

@ Net profit afer laxes + Non-Operaling expenses

™ Interest and lease payments + Principal Repaymenls

™ Gross credit sales - sales relurn

) Gross credit purchases - purchase retums + Other expenses
© Total sales - sales retum

 Current assets - Current liabilities

™ Tangible Net Worth + Tolal Debts + Deferred Tax Liability

* Changes in the ralios is due lo change in the business openations during the year.
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2.33 Lease

Operating leases in the capacity of lessec
The Company has certain leases of buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less or with low value, The Company applics the ‘short-term lease * and “lease of low-value assels’
recognition exemptions for these leases

The Company has residential premnses under cancellable operating leases. The Company intends to renew such lease in the normal course of business: Total rental expenses
under cancellable operanng lease amounted to Rs 3 81 (31 March 2021 Rs 3.22) The same are grouped under other expenses i the statement of profir and loss

2.34 Goodwill

As a1 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 258 20 258 20

For impmrment testing, goodwill (acquired through b ) has been all. d 10 the Medical and Healihcare Services CGU

The Company performed its annual impairment test for years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

Medical and Health Care CGU

The recoverable amount of the CGU, has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by the Management
covering a five year period The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impairment testing during the years is stated in the below table and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a long term growth rate as staled in the below table that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the Medical and Health
care industry.

The fallissiny table sets out the kev assumption for the Cash Generating Unit (*CGU™) for performing the annual impairmient test:

For the yenr ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount 12 20% 16.20%
rate
Long term yrowth rate 5.00% 5.00%

The discount rale is based on the Weighied Average Cost of Capital (W ACC) which represents the weighted average return attributable to all the assets of the CGU

There is no impairmerit noted in the Medical and Healthcare Services CGU based on the assessment performed by the Management. Management has performed sensilivity
analysis around the base ption and have luded that no ble possible change in key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the Medical and
Healthcare Services CGU lower than the carrying amount of CGU

2.35 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Company does not have any
unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

2.36 Other Statutory Information

i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any pr¢ ding has been iniliated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

{ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(i) The Company do nol have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered wilh ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding

thal the Inlermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirecily lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the und ding (whether ded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vi) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

{viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or fi ial i or g or ony g authority.
(ix) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year.

237 There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting year.
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